



File No: 3AM-IQA0611

Honourable Jim Prentice
Minister
Indian and Northern Affairs Canada
Ottawa ON K1A 0H0

Dear Mr. Prentice,

Please contact me should you have any questions regarding this licence.

Original signed by:

Attachment: Reasons for Decision

c.c. City of Iqaluit
Distribution List - Qikiqtani
NWB Public Registry



NUNAVUT WATER BOARD WATER LICENCE

Pursuant to the *Nunavut Waters and Nunavut Surface Rights Tribunal Act* and the *Agreement Between the Inuit of the Nunavut Settlement Area and Her Majesty the Queen in right of Canada*, the Nunavut Water Board, hereinafter referred to as the Board, hereby grants to

City of Iqaluit

(Licensee)

P.O. Box 460
Iqaluit, NU X0A 0H0

(Mailing Address)

hereinafter called the Licensee, the right to alter, divert or otherwise use water or dispose of waste for a period subject to restrictions and conditions contained within this Licence:

Licence Number/Type:	3AM-IQA0611 TYPE "A"
Water Management Area:	NUNAVUT 05
Location:	NUNAVUT
Classification of Undertaking:	MUNICIPAL UNDERTAKING
Description:	WATER USE AND WASTE DISPOSAL
Quantity of Water not to be Exceeded:	1,100,000 CUBIC METRES ANNUALLY
Date of Issuance of Licence:	MAY 15, 2006
Expiry of Licence:	MAY 15, 2011

This License issued and recorded at Gjoa Haven, Nunavut includes and is subject to the annexed conditions.

Lootie Toomasie
Chairman

APPROVED BY: Minister of Indian and
Northern Affairs Canada

EFFECTIVE DATE OF LICENCE:

PART A: SCOPE, DEFINITIONS AND ENFORCEMENT

1. Scope

- a. This Licence entitles the City of Iqaluit (the “Licensee”), to use water and dispose of waste associated for municipal undertakings as summarized below.

The Licensee may conduct activities at the City of Iqaluit, Nunavut, (63°45’ N, 68°31’ W) including:

Water Use

- i. Use, management and protection of the Lake Geraldine drainage basin;
- ii. Raising of the Lake Geraldine dam by 2.0 m to meet over-winter storage capacity;
- iii. Extension of the two berms adjacent to the Lake Geraldine dam and construction of a new berm to the south of the Lake Geraldine dam;

Comment [p1]: Remove

Comment [p2]: Remove

Solid Waste Management

- iv. Landfill expansion into the northern adjacent site in the West 40 Landfill site;
- v. Management and protection of waters surrounding the West 40 Landfill site;
- vi. Management, collection, and monitoring of leachate from the West 40 Landfill site and adjacent Sludge Management Facility;
- vii. Improved drainage works at the West 40 Landfill site;
- viii. Management and operation of current and future solid waste facilities;
- ix. Closure and restoration of current landfills and waste disposal sites;

Comment [p3]: Remove

Comment [p4]: Remove

Comment [p5]: Remove

Wastewater Management

- x. Upgrading, maintenance, operation and monitoring of the Sewage Lagoon;
- xi. Construction, operation, maintenance and monitoring of a Wastewater Treatment Plant;
- xii. Construction, operation, maintenance, and monitoring of a Sludge Management Facility;
- xiii. Closure and restoration of the Sewage Lagoon; and
- xiv. Contingency measures for wastewater and landfill management.

Comment [p6]: Remove

Comment [p7]: Remove

Comment [p8]: Remove

Comment [p9]: Remove

- b. This Licence is issued subject to the conditions contained herein with respect to the taking of water and the depositing of waste of any type in any waters or in any place under any conditions where such waste or any other waste that results from the deposits of such waste may enter any waters. Whenever new Regulations are made or existing Regulations are amended by the Governor in Council under the *Nunavut Waters and Nunavut Surface Rights Tribunal Act*, or other statutes imposing more stringent conditions relating to the quantity or type of waste that may be so deposited or under which any such waste may be so deposited, this Licence shall be deemed to be subject to such requirements.

- c. Compliance with the terms and conditions of this Licence does not absolve the Licensee from responsibility for compliance with all applicable legislation, guidelines and directives.

2. Definitions

Please refer to Schedule A

3. Enforcement

- a. Failure to comply with this Licence will be a violation of the *Act*, subjecting the Licensee to the enforcement measures and the penalties provided for in the *Act*;
- b. All inspection and enforcement services regarding this Licence will be provided by Inspectors appointed under the *Act*;
- c. For the purpose of enforcing this Licence and with respect to the use of water and deposit or discharge of waste by the Licensee, Inspectors appointed under the *Act*, hold all powers, privileges and protections that are conferred upon them by the *Act* or by other applicable law; and
- d. The Inspector shall undertake the following:
 - i. Sixty 60 days following receipt of the Licensees Annual report submitted in accordance with Part B, Item 1, the Inspector shall submit to the Board an annual report which will include, among other things:
 - 1. Compliance with all conditions of this Licence;
 - 2. Monitoring as identified in Schedule C;
 - 3. Emergency discharges authorized in accordance with Part E, Item 18 and 19;
 - 4. Unauthorized discharges report and notification received in accordance with Part H, Item 5 (c); and
 - 5. Any additional details the Inspector deems relevant in accordance with Part A, Item 3(c).

PART B: GENERAL CONDITIONS

- 1. The Licensee shall file an Annual Report with the Board no later than March 31 for the year following the calendar year being reported. The Annual Report shall be developed in accordance with Schedule B.
- 2. The Licensee shall keep a copy of this Licence at City Hall, the Water Supply Facility and Waste Disposal Facilities at all times.
- 3. The Licensee shall file an application for Licence renewal one (1) year prior to the expiry of this Licence. In addition to the application, the Licensee shall include:
 - a. Complete water balance for Lake Geraldine prepared by an Engineer; and
 - b. Assessment of recharge needs for long term water demands.

Comment [p10]: Remove

4. Any communication with respect to this Licence shall be made in writing and shall reference the Licence number and the specific term and condition, to the attention of:
- Manager of Licensing
Nunavut Water Board
P. O. Box 119
Gjoa Haven, NU X0B 1J0
Telephone: (867) 360-6338
Fax: (867) 360-6369
Email: licensing@nwb.nunavut.ca
5. Any notice made to an Inspector shall be made in writing to the attention of:
- Water Resources Officer
Nunavut District Office
Indian and Northern Affairs Canada
P.O. Box 100
Iqaluit, NU X0A 0H0
Telephone: (867) 975-4298
Fax: (867) 979-6445
6. The Licensee shall submit one (1) electronic and one (1) signed paper copy of all reports, studies, and plans to the Board unless otherwise requested by the Board. Reports or studies submitted to the Board by the Licensee shall include a detailed executive summary in English and Inuktitut.
7. It is the responsibility of the Licensee to ensure that the receipt of any documents or correspondence submitted by the Licensee to the Board is properly acknowledged by the Manager of Licensing.

Comment [p11]: Update

Comment [p12]: Remove

Comment [p13]: Remove

PART C: CONDITIONS APPLYING TO SECURITY

1. The Licensee is not required to post security for this undertaking.

PART D: CONDITIONS APPLYING TO WATER USE AND WATER MANAGEMENT PLANS

1. The Licensee is authorized to use water for municipal purposes from Lake Geraldine or as otherwise approved by the Board.
2. The total annual quantity of water used for all purposes from Lake Geraldine shall not exceed 1,100,000 m³ or as otherwise approved by the Board.
3. The Licensee shall equip the water intake(s) with a screen with a mesh size sufficient such that no entrainment of fish can occur.
4. The Licensee shall ensure that the rate of water withdrawal is such that fish do not become impinged on the screen.

Comment [p14]: Remove, it is a gravity fed water intake

5. The Licensee shall undertake a Dam Safety Inspection of the Lake Geraldine Reservoir between July and September bi-annually starting in 2008. A final report shall be submitted to the Board for review no later than 60 days following the site inspection and include a cover letter from the Licensee indicating how and when recommendations and/or deficiencies identified in the Inspection Report will be addressed.
6. The Licensee shall take steps necessary to prevent and mitigate erosion and the release of sediment into water flowing into and from Lake Geraldine.

Comment [p15]: Remove and add - with the Annual Report

PART E: CONDITIONS APPLYING TO WASTE DISPOSAL AND WASTE MANAGEMENT PLANS

Wastewater

1. The Licensee is authorized to use the Sewage Lagoon to treat and dispose of municipal wastewater until the Wastewater Treatment Plant is commissioned, or as otherwise approved by the Board.
2. The Licensee shall provide at least ten (10) days written notice to an Inspector and the Board prior to any planned discharges from the Sewage Lagoon.
3. The Licensee shall ensure that any discharges from the Wastewater Treatment Facilities meet the following Effluent quality criteria:
 - a. Until notification is provided in accordance with Part E, Item 3(d), all discharges by the Licensee from the Sewage Lagoon at monitoring Station Number IQA-01 shall comply with the following effluent quality criteria:

All Effluent discharges shall have a pH between 6 and 9.

Parameter	Maximum Average Concentration	Maximum Concentration of Any Grab Sample
Biological Oxygen Demand (5 day) - BOD ₅	120 mg/L	180 mg/L
Total Suspended Solid	180 mg/L	270 mg/L
Oil and Grease	No visible sheen	

- b. All discharges by the Licensee from the Wastewater Treatment Plant at monitoring Station Number IQA-02 shall comply with the following Effluent quality criteria:

All Effluent discharges shall have a pH between 6 and 9.

Parameter	Maximum Average Concentration	Maximum Concentration of Any Grab Sample
Biological Oxygen Demand (5 day) - BOD ₅	30 mg/L	45
Total Suspended Solid	30 mg/L	45
Oil and Grease	No visible sheen	

- c. All surface runoff during construction of any facilities designed to withhold, divert, or retain water or wastewater shall comply with the following criteria:

All Effluent discharges shall have a pH between 6 and 9.

Parameter	Maximum Average Concentration	Maximum Concentration of Any Grab Sample
Total Suspended Solids –TSS	50.0 mg/L	100.0 mg/L

- d. The Licensee shall confirm compliance as part of the commissioning phase for the Wastewater Treatment Plant. Upon completion of commissioning, final results and notification of intent shall be made in writing to the Inspector.

Comment [p16]: This needs to be updated based on the discussions from the Technical, Public and Pre-Hearing Conference to reflect pre-construction of the WWTP and post construction of the WWTP.

4. Undiluted Effluent shall be non-acutely toxic under the “Rainbow Trout, *Oncorhynchus mykiss* (as per Environment Canada’s Environmental Protection Series Biological Test Method EPS/1/RM/13)”.

Comment [p17]: Updated with the new testing requirements requested in the Changes to Schedule C and Monitoring Program Letter dated February 5, 2016. The testing requirements must also reflect pre-construction of the WWTP and post-construction.

5. Upon commissioning of the Wastewater Treatment Plant, the Sewage Lagoon shall be considered as a back up facility only. Any discharges from the back-up Sewage Lagoon shall be considered emergency discharges and shall require authorization from an Inspector in accordance with Part E, Item 20 and 21.

6. The Licensee shall submit to the Board for approval an Operation and Maintenance Manual for the Wastewater Treatment Facilities by December 31, 2007. The manual shall be prepared in accordance with the “*Guidelines for the Preparation of an Operation and Maintenance Manual for Sewage and Solid Waste Disposal Facilities in the Northwest Territories* (GNWT 1996)”. The manual shall also cover the operation and maintenance of the Sludge Management Facility.

Comment [p18]: The current O&M Manual is up-to-date for the facility. Once the new WWTP is commissioned an O&M Manual will be provided for the upgraded WWTP.

7. The Licensee shall submit to the Board for approval the “Final Assessment of the Sludge Management Pilot Project”, completed by an Engineer, within 30 days following notification in accordance with Part E, Item 3(d).

Comment [p19]: Remove, it has already been provided

8. The Licensee shall undertake a Dam Safety Inspection of the Sewage Lagoon, completed by an Engineer, once before October 31, 2006, ~~then between July and September bi-annually starting in 2008 until notification has been provided in accordance with Part E Item 3(d).~~ A final report shall be submitted to the Board with the Annual Report, for review no later than 60 days following the site inspection and include a cover letter from the Licensee indicating how and when recommendations and/or deficiencies identified in the Inspection Report will be addressed.

Solid Waste

9. The Licensee shall dispose of and contain all municipal solid waste at the West 40 Landfill site or as otherwise approved by the Board.
10. The Licensee shall submit to the Board for review by March 31, 2010, a Long-term Solid

Waste Management Plan. The plan shall include, but not limited to, the following:

- a. Options for solid waste disposal and discussion of preferred alternative; and
- b. Selection of a site for solid waste disposal.

Comment [p20]: Remove

11. The Licensee shall implement the approved "Revision 2-City of Iqaluit Solid Waste Facility Operation and Maintenance Manual (April 2005)" upon the effective date of this Licence.

Comment [p21]: Remove

12. The Licensee shall review all Operation and Maintenance Manuals annually and revise them as necessary to reflect changes due to best practices in operation and technology. Any proposed changes to the manual shall be submitted to the Board for approval. Proposed changes shall be submitted as an addendum to the approved manual as part of the Annual Report requirement Part B, Item 1.
13. In the event that any plan, manual, or report referred to in this Part is not approved by the Board, the Licensee shall provide a revised version to the Board within 30 days of notification by the Board.
14. Further to Part E, Item 13, the Licensee shall implement the documents referred to in this Part as and when approved by the Board.
15. The Licensee shall submit an addendum to the manual referred to in Part E, Item 11 that will include details for contaminated soils and hazardous waste, including, but not limited to: types, volumes ultimate disposal, emergency response, thresholds, and maximum amounts accepted to the facility.
16. The Licensee shall collect and contain all leachate within the West 40 Landfill.
17. At least 90 days prior to any proposed release, discharge or transfer of leachate from the West 40 Landfill, the Licensee shall submit to the Board for approval a report prepared by an Engineer that will include at minimum a discussion of available treatment options, proposed discharge criteria in relation to the proposed discharge location(s) and discharge volumes, and a monitoring programme.
18. The Inspector may authorize an emergency discharge if the Licensee submits to the Inspector, at least 15 days prior to the planned discharge, the following:
 - a. Reason for discharge;
 - b. Identification of the Final Discharge Point;
 - c. Proposed sampling and analysis; and
 - d. Proposed mitigation measures.
19. For any emergency discharge authorized by the Inspector, the Licensee shall submit to the Board and to the Inspector a report that includes, among other things, an analysis of results of the emergency discharge in the Monthly monitoring report required by Part I, Item 11.

Comment [p22]: Remove

PART F: CONDITIONS APPLYING TO CONSTRUCTION

General

1. The Licensee shall insure that any material used in construction is free of contaminants such that it will not cause detrimental or significant effects to water.
2. The Licensee shall maintain shoreline stability during construction.
3. All final designs and drawings shall be qualified by an Engineer confirming that:
 - a. The works are designed under sound engineering principles;
 - b. Design limitations are understood and communicated within the report; and
 - c. All measures will be taken to minimize impact to water.
4. The Licensee shall, within 90 days of completion of any structure designed to contain, withhold, divert or retain waters or wastes, submit to the Board for approval, a construction report prepared by an Engineer that shall include as-built drawings, documentation of field decisions that deviate from original plans, and any data used to support these decisions.
5. The Licensee shall ensure that all construction of engineered structures will be supervised and field-checked by an Engineer in such a manner that the project specification can be enforced and, where required, the quality control measures can be followed. The Licensee shall also ensure that the construction records of all engineered structures are maintained and made available at the request of the Board and/or an Inspector.
6. During construction and excavation, if contamination of surface and/or ground water is encountered, the Licensee shall notify the Inspector immediately and implement the Spill Contingency Plan.

Water Supply

7. The Licensee shall take steps necessary to prevent and mitigate erosion and the release of sediment into water flowing into and from Lake Geraldine during construction of the new berms and expansion of the Lake Geraldine dam.
8. The Licensee shall submit to the Board for approval, the final design and drawings by an Engineer, within 30 days of the effective date of the Licence, for the Lake Geraldine Raw Water Storage Phase II. The Licensee shall ensure that such facilities are designed and constructed to engineering standards such that at a minimum they comply with the Canadian Dam Safety Guidelines. The Design shall be qualified in accordance with Part F, Item 3.
9. The Licensee shall undertake a dam safety review of the Lake Geraldine Raw Water Storage Phase II Upgrade, completed by an Engineer, in accordance with the Canadian Dam Safety Guidelines prior to October 31, 2006. The final report shall be submitted to the Board for review no later than 60 days following the safety review and shall include a cover letter from the Licensee indicating how and when recommendations or deficiencies identified in the safety review will be addressed.

Comment [PC23]: Remove

Comment [PC24]: Remove

Solid Waste

10. The Licensee shall submit to the Board for approval, within 30 days of the effective date of the Licence, a Drainage Improvement and Management Design and drawings prepared by an Engineer for all operations in the West 40 Landfill site. The Design shall be qualified in accordance with Part F, Item 3.
11. The Licensee shall submit to the Board for approval, within 30 days of the effective date of the Licence, the Final Design for the West 40 Landfill Northern Expansion and drawings by an Engineer. The Design shall be qualified in accordance with Part F, Item 3.
12. The Licensee shall submit to the Board for approval, within 60 days of the effective date of the Licence, the Final Design for the Sludge Management Facility and drawings by an Engineer. The Design shall be qualified in accordance with Part F, Item 3.

Comment [PC25]: Remove

Comment [PC26]: Remove

Comment [PC27]: Remove

Wastewater

13. The Licensee shall submit to the Board for approval, within 30 days of the effective date of this Licence, the Final Design for the Rehabilitation of the West Berm of the Sewage Lagoon prepared by an Engineer, and an implementation schedule for the recommendations of the Dam Safety Inspection (2005). The Design shall be qualified in accordance with Part F, Item 3.
14. The Licensee shall submit to the Board for review, within 10 days of the effective date of the Licence, the Final Design for Phase I of the Wastewater Treatment Plant stamped by an Engineer and qualified in accordance with Part F, Item 3, and As-built drawings.

Comment [PC28]: Remove

Comment [PC29]: Remove

PART G: CONDITIONS APPLYING TO MODIFICATIONS

1. The Licensee may, without written consent from the Board, carry out Modifications to the ~~Raw Water Reservoir Supply Facilities~~ and Waste Disposal Facilities provided that such Modifications are consistent with the terms of this Licence and the following requirements are met:
 - a. the Licensee has notified the Board in writing of such proposed Modifications at least 60 days prior to beginning the Modifications;
 - b. such Modifications do not place the Licensee in contravention of the Licence or the *Act*;
 - c. the Board has not, during the 60 days following notification of the proposed Modifications, informed the Licensee that review of the proposal will require more than 60 days; and
 - d. The Board has not rejected the proposed Modifications.
2. Modifications for which all of the conditions referred to in Part G, Item 1 have not been met can be carried out only with written approval from the Board.

3. The Licensee shall provide as-built plans and drawings of the Modifications referred to in this Licence within 90 days of completion of the Modification. These plans and drawings shall be stamped by an Engineer.

PART H: CONDITIONS APPLYING TO CONTINGENCY PLANNING

1. The Licensee shall implement the approved “*City of Iqaluit Spill Contingency Plan (Updated Dillon 2004)*,” upon the effective date of this Licence.
2. The Licensee shall implement the approved “*Sewage Lift Station Contingency Plan (Dillon 2003)*” upon the effective date of this Licence.
3. In accordance with Part H, Item 4, the Licensee shall submit an addendum to reflect any changes in operation of the new Wastewater Treatment Plant and Sludge Management Facility.
4. The Licensee shall review the Contingency Plans annually and revise them as necessary to reflect changes in operation and technology. Any proposed changes to the plans shall be submitted to the Board for approval. Proposed changes may be submitted as addenda to the approved plans as part of the Annual Report requirement Part B, Item 2.
5. If, during the period of this Licence, an unauthorized discharge of Waste and/or Effluent occurs, or if such a discharge is foreseeable, the Licensee shall:
 - a. Employ the appropriate Contingency Plan;
 - b. Report the incident immediately via the 24-Hour Spill Reporting Line (867) 920-8130; and
 - c. Submit to an Inspector a detailed written report on each occurrence no later than thirty (30) days after initially reporting to the Spill Reporting Line.

Comment [PC30]: Insert new agreed upon date

Comment [PC31]: Remove, added to Spill Contingency Plan

PART I: CONDITIONS APPLYING TO MONITORING

General

1. The Licensee shall install meters or such devices, or use such methods for measuring the volumes or flow of Water used and Effluent discharged. The meters and measuring devices or methods shall be operated and maintained to the satisfaction of an Inspector.
2. The Licensee shall maintain the necessary signs to identify the stations of the Monitoring Program to the satisfaction of an Inspector.
3. The Licensee shall collect the samples referred to in this Part without delay. If at any time, the period specified for collecting samples was extended due to unforeseen circumstances, safety concerns or access problems and render the collection of samples impracticable, the Licensee shall notify an Inspector of the circumstances.

4. The Licensee shall submit to the Board for approval a Monitoring Program for the water supply, Wastewater Treatment Plant, and West 40 Landfill site, including the Sludge Management Facilities. The Program shall include, but not be limited to, the requirements listed in Schedule C.
 - a. The monitoring program for Lake Geraldine shall be submitted 30 days from the effective date of this Licence;
 - b. The monitoring program for the Wastewater Treatment Plant shall be submitted 60 days following notification of commissioning; and
 - c. The monitoring program for the entire West 40 Landfill site shall be submitted no later than March 31, 2007.
5. All analyses shall be conducted as described in the most recent edition of “*Standard Methods for the Examination of Water and Wastewater*”, or by such other methods as approved by the Board.
6. All laboratory analyses shall be performed at a laboratory accredited according to ISO/IEC Standard 17025. The accreditation shall be current and in good standing.
7. The Licensee shall submit to the Board for approval, within 90 days of the effective date of this License, a Quality Assurance/Quality Control (QA/QC) Plan prepared in accordance with “*Quality Assurance (QA) and Quality Control(QC) Guidelines For Use By Class “A” Licensees in Meeting SNP Requirements and for Submission of a QA/QC Plan (INAC, 1996)*”.
8. In the event that the plan and/or monitoring program(s) referred to in this Part are not approved by the Board, the Licensee shall provide a revised version to the Board for review within 30 days of notification by the Board.
9. The Licensee shall implement the plans and monitoring programs referred to in this Part as and when approved by the Board.
10. The Licensee shall annually review the approved plans and monitoring programs referred to in this Part and modify them as necessary. Any proposed changes shall be submitted to the Board for approval. Proposed changes may be submitted as addenda to the approved plans or programs as part of the Annual Report requirement Part B, Item 1.
11. The Licensee shall, within 60 days following the month being reported, submit to the Board a “Monthly General Monitoring Report” of all data and information required under Schedule C, including the results of the QA/QC program.
12. There should be at least one inspection of all facilities defined within the scope of this license annually between July and September. The Inspector shall submit a detailed inspection report with supporting photographs and sampling results as required under Schedule C to the Board no later than 90 days following the date of inspection.
13. Additional monitoring may be requested by the Board and/or the Inspector.
14. The Licensee shall increase sampling frequency if results of such sampling indicate that the Effluent Quality Requirements provided in Part C have been exceeded, or as

Comment [PC32]: Remove and insert agreed upon monitoring schedule

Comment [PC33]: Remove

requested by the Board or directed by an Inspector.

Comment [PC34]: Wave this condition prior to the completion of the WWTP Upgrades

15. The Monitoring Criteria and compliance dates specified in the Licence may be modified at the discretion of the Board and do not constitute an application for amendment as defined in the *Act*.

PART J: CONDITIONS APPLYING TO ABANDONMENT AND RESTORATION

1. The Licensee shall submit to the Board for review, within 90 days of the effective date of the Licence, a conceptual Abandonment and Restoration Plan for the West 40 Landfill site prepared in accordance with industry best practices.
2. The Plan referred to in Part J, Item 1 shall be updated annually and submitted in accordance with Part B, Item 1.
3. The Licensee shall submit to the Board for approval, ~~one year prior to expiry of this Licence or~~ one year before the West 40 Landfill ~~site will reach capacity~~ will be fully decommissioned, a Final Abandonment and Restoration Plan prepared by an Engineer in accordance with industry best practices.
4. Further to Part J, Item 1 and 3, the Conceptual and Final Abandonment and Restoration Plans shall include, among other things, a presentation of data and a discussion of environment conditions existing before the use of the site by the Licensee as a municipal landfill, as well as remediation objectives.
5. In the event that the Plan referred to in Part J, Item 1, is not approved by the Board, the Licensee shall provide a revision to the Board for review within 30 days of notification by the Board.
6. The Licensee shall implement the Plan referred to in Part J, Item 1 as and when approved by the Board.
7. The Licensee shall notify the Board in writing of its intent to proceed with final closure of any water use or waste disposal facility within the scope of this Licence at least one year prior to implementation of final closure.
8. Further to this Part, the Licensee shall submit to the Board for approval 6 months following notification of final closure, a Final Abandonment and Restoration Plan completed by an Engineer in accordance with Part F, Item 3.

Comment [PC35]: Remove

Comment [PC36]: Remove

SCHEDULES

The following schedules provide instructive details to the conditions appearing in more general terms in the main body of the Licence and are spelled out in this format for greater clarity.

(Schedule A - Definitions)

Schedule A - Definitions

In this Licence: 3AM-IQA0611

“**Act**” means the *Nunavut Waters and Nunavut Surface Rights Tribunal Act*;

“**Amendment**” means a change to any terms and condition of this Licence, through application to the NWB, requiring correction, addition or deletion of specific terms and conditions of the Licence except for Schedule C;

“**Bioassay**” means the test to determine acute toxicity under the “Rainbow Trout, *Oncorhynchus mykiss* (as per Environment Canada’s Environmental Protection Series Biological Test Method EPS/1/RM/13)”;

“**Board**” means the Nunavut Water Board established under Article 13 the *Nunavut Land Claims Agreement* and under Section 14 of the *Act*;

“**Chief Administrative Officer**” means the Executive Director of the Nunavut Water Board;

“**Construction**” means any activities undertaken to construct or build any component of, or associated with, the water and waste disposal facilities within the City of Iqaluit;

“**Compliance**” means effluent must comply with the Licence effluent quality criteria. Compliance is defined as follows:

- a) the arithmetic mean of all parameters measured in the last four (4) samples collected in the same season shall not exceed the effluent quality criteria;
- b) of the samples referred to in (a) above, three (3) shall not exceed the effluent quality criteria; and
- c) of the samples referred to in (a) above, no sample shall exceed one hundred and fifty (150) percent of the effluent quality criteria; and.

“**Dam Safety Guidelines**” means the *Canadian Dam Association (CDA) Dam Safety Guidelines (DSG)*, January 1999 or subsequent approved editions;

“**Deleterious Substance**” means a substance as defined in Section 34(1) of the *Fisheries Act*;

“**Deposit**” means the placement of solids materials on land or in water;

“**Discharge**” means the release of any water or waste to the receiving environment;

“**Drainage Basin**” means a geographical area determined by the watershed limits of the systems of water, including surface and underground water, flowing into a common terminus;

“**Effective Date of Licence**” means the date on which the Minister of Indian and Northern Affairs Canada approves the Licence;

(Schedule A - Definitions)

“**Effluent**” means the liquid discharge from all site water or waste management facilities;

“**Engineer**” means a professional engineer registered to practice in Nunavut in accordance with the *Engineering, Geological and Geophysical Act (Nunavut)* S.N.W.T. 1998, c.38, s.5 with the ability to stamp, sign and appropriately qualify the design and its limitations;

“**Final Discharge Point**” means the final point of control for any discharge of effluent;

“**Lake Geraldine Reservoir**” means the infrastructure required for extraction, storage, of water for the City of Iqaluit;

“**Grab Sample**” means an undiluted quantity of material collected at a particular time and place that may be representative of the total substance being sampled at the time and place it was collected;

“**Inspector**” means an Inspector designated by the Minister under Section 85 (1) of the *Act*;

“**Licence**” means this Type “A” Water Licence 3AM-IQA0611, issued by the Nunavut Water Board in accordance with the *Act*, to City of Iqaluit;

“**Licensee**” means to whom Licence 3AM-IQA0611 is issued to or assigned;

“**Maximum Average Concentration**” means the average concentration of any four consecutively collected samples taken from the identical sampling location and taken during any given timeframe;

“**Minister**” means the Minister of Indian and Northern Affairs Canada;

“**Modification**” means an alteration to a physical work that introduces a new structure or eliminates an existing structure and does not alter the purpose or function of the work, but does not include an expansion;

“**Nunavut Land Claims Agreement**” (NLCA) means the “*Agreement Between the Inuit of the Nunavut Settlement Area and Her Majesty the Queen in Right of Canada*,” including its preamble and schedules, and any amendments to that agreement made pursuant to it;

“**Reclamation**” means the process of converting disturbed land back to its former or other productive use;

“**Receiving Environment**” means both the aquatic and terrestrial environments that receive any discharge;

“**Regulations**” means the *Northwest Territories Water Regulations SOR/93-303 8 June, 1993*.

“**Sewage**” means all toilet wastes and greywater;

(Schedule A - Definitions)

“**Sewage Lagoon**” means a facility and associated structures designed to treat sewage in the City of Iqaluit since 1978;

“**Sludge Management Facility**” means the facility for the disposal and treatment of sludges generated by the Wastewater Treatment Plant;

“**Surface Drainage**” means all surface waters resulting from the flow over, through or out of an operations area and is collected by means of engineered structures;

“**Use**” means use as defined in section 4 of the *Act*;

“**Waste**” means waste as defined in section 4 of the *Act*;

“**Wastewater**” means the water generated by site activities or originates on-site that requires treatment or any other water management activity;

“**Wastewater Treatment Facilities**” means the Sewage Lagoon and the Wastewater Treatment Plant;

“**Wastewater Treatment Plant**” means the engineered system designed for the containment and treatment of sewage for the City of Iqaluit located adjacent to the Sewage Lagoon;

“**Water**” means water as defined in section 4 of the *Act*;

“**Water Licence Application**” means, for the purposes of this License, the totality of the NWB Public Register opened as a result of the filing of the application dated January 2004;

“**Water Treatment Plant**” means the engineered system designed for the treatment of raw water from Lake Geraldine Reservoir for the City of Iqaluit;

“**West 40 Landfill**” means a facility, designed to permanently contain inert solid waste materials, in operation at the time of application (2004), the West 40 Landfill Northern Expansion and the Sludge Management Facility; and

“**West 40 Landfill Northern Expansion**” means the facility designed to permanently contain inert solid waste materials located adjacent to the West 40 Landfill.

Schedule B - General Conditions

1. The Annual Report referred to in Part B, Item 1 shall include the following:
 - a. The monthly and annual quantities in cubic metres of water obtained from Lake Geraldine;
 - b. The monthly and annual quantities in cubic metres of any discharges from the Wastewater Treatment Facilities;
 - c. The monthly and annual quantities in cubic metres of sludge removed from the Wastewater Treatment Plant;
 - d. A summary report which includes all data and information generated under the Monitoring Program, including the QA/QC program, in an electronic and printed format acceptable to the Board;
 - e. A summary of construction activities conducted;
 - f. A summary of any modification and/or major maintenance work and/or demolition work carried out and any associated structures;
 - g. A summary of all work carried out under the Managements Plans in accordance with this Licence;
 - h. A progress report and revisions (if applicable) to any studies requested by the Board that relate to waste management, water use or reclamation and a brief description of any future studies planned by the Licensee including, an executive summary in terms understandable to the general public, translated into Inuktitut;
 - i. Any addendums to the approved Contingency Plans and the approved Operation and Maintenance Manuals;
 - j. A list and description including volumes, Spill Report Line identification number of all un-authorized discharges, spills and summaries of follow-up action taken;
 - k. Any revisions to approved Closure and Reclamation Plan(s);
 - l. A summary of any closure and reclamation work undertaken and an outline of any work anticipated for the next year, including any changes to implementation and scheduling;
 - m. A summary of actions taken to address concerns or deficiencies listed in the inspection reports and/or compliance reports filed by an Inspector;
 - n. Update on implementation of recommendation(s) from any Dam Safety Inspection and/or Review;
 - o. A brief update on the implementation plan of all facilities within the scope of this Licence including projected implementation and status of Phase II of the Wastewater Treatment Plant; and
 - p. Any details on water use or waste disposal requested by the Board by November 1st of the year being reported.

Schedule C - Conditions Applying to Monitoring

- The Monitoring Plan, referred to in Part I, Item 4 of the Licence, shall include, but not necessarily be limited to, the following:

Table 1 - Water Quality Parameters

Test Group	Analytical Parameters	Measurement Units
Routine - R	Alkalinity, Acidity, Chloride, Carbonate, Bicarbonate, Total Hardness, Hydroxide, Sulphate, Total Suspended Solids (TSS), Total Dissolved Solids (TDS), Total Organic Carbon (TOC), Total Inorganic (TIC) pH (field and lab) ORP (field) Conductivity (field and lab) Temperature (field) Turbidity	mg/L pH units mV uS/cm °C NTU
Effluent E	Total Suspended Solids (TSS), Temperature (field), Conductivity (field and lab), pH (field and lab)	mg/L °C uS/cm pH units
Site Specific SS	Chlorinated Paraffins, LC50 Bioassay	ng/L
ICP- ICP Metals Scan (Total) metal scan that shall include at a minimum	Al, Sb, As, Ba, Be, Cd, Cr, Co, Cu, Fe, Pb, Li, Mn, Mo, Ni, Se, Sn, Ag, Sr, Tl, Ti, U, V, Zn, Hg	mg/L
Nutrients – N	Ammonia-N, Nitrate-N, Nitrite-N Total Phosphorus, Orthophosphate	mg N/L mg/L
Biological – B	Biochemical Oxygen Demand Total and Fecal Coliform	mg/L CFU/100mL (colony forming units)
Potable Water - PW	Fecal Coliform ICP Metals (Total and dissolved) Total Suspended Solids –TSS	CFU/100mL mg/L mg/L
Soil - S	Total PCB, Fractional Hydrocarbon, BTEX (Benzene, Toluene, Ethylbenzene and Xylene)	mg/L

Table 2¹ - Water Quality Monitoring Criteria

Station	Location	Phase	Test Group Water Chemistry (refer to Table 1)	Frequency ²	Flow Measurement	Frequency	Responsible Party ³
IQA-01	Raw Water Supply from Lake Geraldine Reservoir at the Water Treatment Plant Prior to Treatment	Operation	R, PW	MO	Yes	M	L
			R, PW	A			I
IQA-01(#)	To be provided in accordance with Part I, Item 4 for Lake Geraldine water levels.						L
IQA-02	Final Discharge Point from the Sewage Lagoon	Operation	B, N, E	BiM	Yes	M	L
			ICP, SS	A			L
			B, N, E, ICP, SS	A			I
IQA-03	Influent to the Sewage Lagoon	Operation	B, N, E, ICP, SS	A			L
IQA-04	Final Discharge Point from the Wastewater Treatment Plant	Operation	B, N, E	BiM	Yes	M	L
			ICP	Q			L
			SS	A			L
			B, N, E, ICP, SS	A			I
IQA-05	Influent to the Wastewater Treatment Plant	Operation	B, N, E, ICP, SS	A			L
IQA-06	Sludge at the Wastewater Treatment Plant	Operation	B, E, N, ICP	M	Yes	M	L
IQA-07	Surface Water entering the West 40 Landfill site	To be provided in accordance with Part I, Item 4					L
IQA-08	Final Discharge Point from the West 40 Landfill	To be provided in accordance with Part E, Item 17					L
		To be provided by the Board following compliance with Part E, Item 17					I
IQA-08(#)	To be provided in accordance with Part E, Item 17, Part F, Item 10, and Part I, Item 4 for the entire West 40 Landfill area						L
IQA -09	Contaminated soils accepted at the West 40 Landfill site	Operation	ICP, S	A			I

¹ Table 2 may be modified by the Board and re-issued where necessary. Re-issuance is not considered an Amendment to the application or Licence as defined in the *Act*.

² Frequency: MO=monthly during open water season; BiM=Bi-monthly, Q = Quarterly, A = Annually

³ Responsible Party: I = Inspector, L = Licensee